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R-5C (High Density Residential w/ Cond's)
& B-2C (General Business w/ Cond's)



 

1/4/2021 

 

Seth Roderick, PE 

Monteverde Engineering & Design Studio 

250 E Elizabeth St, Suite 114 

Harrisonburg, VA  22801 

Thanh Dang 

City of Harrisonburg, Asst. Dir. of Comm. Dev. 

409 S Main St 

Harrisonburg, VA 22801 

RE: Comp. Plan Amendment & Rezoning Request for 108-B-1, 108-B-2, and 108-B-6 

Dear Mrs. Dang, 

The attached rezoning  and Comprehensive Plan applications for the referenced parcels are 

submitted for Planning Commission and Council consideration.  This letter is being provided in 

support of the rezoning and Comprehensive Plan amendment requests associated with the 

referenced parcels, and details the manner in which the request meets the concerns outlined by 

City Ordinance. 

Stoney Ridge Development, formerly known as Ashby Centre and Rockingham Centre, is located on 

South Main Street, approximately 0.25 miles south of Covenant Drive.  The property is divided by 

the City-County line, with the vast majority (~133 acres) lying within the County.  The County 

portion was recently rezoned to support a revised plan of development that more adequately 

addresses today’s commercial and residential needs.  The City portion of the property is comprised 

of tax map parcels 108-B-1, 108-B-2 and 108-B-6, which total approximately 26.30 acres.  This request 

seeks to rezone 5.54 acres of the combined 26.30 acres from B-2 General Business District to R-5 High 

Density Residential District, while adding proffered conditions to the remaining B-2 acreage. In 

addition to and in support of this rezoning request, we feel it prudent to also amend the current 

Comprehensive Plan designation of Commercial to that of Medium Density Residential for the 

requested 5.54 acres, for the sake of consistency.  

The placement and designation of residential use on the designated City parcels, as shown 

pictorially in the accompanying Exhibits, follows extensive land planning efforts for the entire (City 

and County) acreage.  These efforts resulted in what we feel is the most appropriate highest and best 

use for the land as a whole, with the newly proposed multi-family residential uses being placed 

directly behind commercial acreage resized to a most-efficient lot depth.  The proposed residential 

use will be part of a larger multi-family development residing within the County, with access and 
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amenities located across the City-County line.  While the City’s rezoning would only account for a 

maximum of 72 residential units, the sum of the multi-family development, inclusive of County 

development, is anticipated to provide much needed residential density on the southern end of the 

City.   

Both the City and County residents can be expected to see numerous benefits in calling Stoney Ridge 

Estates home. In addition to meeting economic needs currently present in today’s market, residents 

will gain access to both passive and active programmed spaces that enhance livability. These 

designated spaces, located throughout the development but primarily in the County, include 

meandering walking trails, turf fields, a central playground, and a shared-use path linking different 

residential areas to the commercial uses and a centralized community park. Although much of the 

Stoney Ridge neighborhood is located in Rockingham County, the City of Harrisonburg can greatly 

benefit by the means stated above 

From an infrastructure standpoint, a Traffic Impact Analysis was completed for the entire City-

County development under its temporary moniker, “The Bluestone Development.”  This TIA found 

that the proposed cumulative (City and County components) “down-zoning” from commercial to 

residential had a tremendously positive impact to the surrounding roadway network, as 

approximately one half of the site’s gross generated trips were removed from the network.  In 

addition, proffers associated with the County rezoning redirected approximately $700,000 of off-site 

road improvements to the City intersection in most need:  South Main St & Covenant Drive / I-81 

Ramps at Exit 243.  Ignored in previous conceptions of this development, this redirection of funds 

will benefit not only the proposed development of Stoney Ridge Estates, but also the new 

Harrisonburg High School and surrounding businesses.  The rezoning and Comprehensive Plan 

amendment request associated with City parcels adds to this benefit, via proffered conditions, by 

adding a continuous right-turn lane into the development, and restricting left-turns from areas 

where accident potential would otherwise remain high.  Previously proffered City improvements, 

such as right-of-way dedication along South Main St and the installation of a signal at the primary 

entrance opposite Reedy Cir, remain as part of the zoning request. 

Please note that conditions tied to the County zoning require consultation with the Harrisonburg 

Department of Public Transportation (HDPT) to determine if route extensions can be made to serve 

the community.  Preliminary consultations have indicated that this is a likely scenario, as City Route 

4 already serves the nearby vicinity.  Combined with the internal roadways, sidewalks, and shared 

use path, provisions of public transportation will allow for a comprehensive multi-modal network to 

meet every need of the development’s users. 
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In sum, this rezoning and Comp Plan amendment request associated with Stoney Ridge Estates 

allows for affordable workforce housing in an area of need, includes access to desirable 

neighborhood amenities, and provides additional traffic mitigation, all while providing a catalyst for 

further commercial growth on the southern end of Harrisonburg.  Provisions made within this plan 

of development have potential for both immediate and long-lasting positive impacts to our 

community and Harrisonburg.   

We appreciate your consideration in this request, and look forward to explaining the same in a 

public forum soon. 

Sincerely, 

Seth Roderick, PE 

Managing Partner 

Monteverde Engineering & Design Studio 










